
 
 
 

 
 
 

         13 January 2021 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Thursday, 21 January 2021 

beginning at 
6:00 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE: this is will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed 

here: https://bit.ly/2LR6u68 

 
TO: Councillor Tonia Craig (Chair) 
 Councillor Steve Holes (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor David Airey Councillor Malcolm Cross 
Councillor Adam Manning Councillor Jane Rich 

 
Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 02380 688298; 

Email: nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Ross McClean, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3367;  Email: 
ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
NATALIE WIGMAN 

Corporate Director - Strategy 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk 

 as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request. 

 
PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-
in to proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be 

publicised on the Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It 
is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take 

decisions without disruption, so the only participants in this virtual 
meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers advising the 
Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting will be recorded. 

 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

https://bit.ly/2LR6u68
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies     
 
2. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
3. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 10)  

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2020. 
  
4. Public Participation      

 Councillors not on the Local Area Committee and members of the public can 
participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways: 
 

 If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to 

be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working 

days (Midday Friday 15 January 2021) before the meeting. Technical and 

etiquette guides will be provided. 

 Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the 

spokesperson’.  Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days 

(Midday Tuesday 19 January 2021) before the date of the meeting. 

Democratic Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read 

out. 

 The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum 

of three minutes if read out.  Please therefore restrict your statement to one 

side of A4 (12 font).  This applies audio/ video recordings also. 

 Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days 

(Midday Friday 15 January 2021) before the meeting.  This must be 

accompanied by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not 

meet technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson 

and shown on the screen.  

 Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk 
  
5. Chair's Announcements     
 
6. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
7. Planning Application - The Cottage, Station Road, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 

8AA    (Pages 11 - 28)  

 Removal of existing outbuilding construction of a single storey front extension and 
detached car port with cycle store. 

  

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


8. Planning Application - St Georges, Kew Lane, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 
8DG    (Pages 29 - 38)  

 Erection of Wooden Garden Studio to replace Wooden Shed and Greenhouse. 
  
9. Financial Management Report    (Pages 39 - 42) 
 
10. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

Drove House, High Street, Bursledon. SO31 8DJ (F/20/87702) 
 
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
construction of two storey 4-bedroom dwelling and detached double garage 
following the demolition of the existing dwelling and garage. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
Land Adjacent to Grange Road Netley, Southampton, SO31 8GD 
(F/20/88060) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the raising of 
stable roof to provide loft storage space (Part retrospective) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 

(b) that the following appeals have been part allowed and part dismissed:- 
 

Lionheart Way Ecology Park, Lionheart Way, Bursledon, Southampton, 
SO31 8GF (T/19/87084) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to 
trees protected by a Tree Preservation Order. 

 
(c) that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
 

15 Bridge Close, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8AN (H/20/87956) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission to raise ridge 
height and addition of dormer window to northwest side elevation.  

  

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s happening in 
the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates with news as it 

happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus lots more. 
www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 24 March 2021 at 6:00 pm 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 3 December 2020  (6:00 pm – 7:55 pm) 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Craig (Chairman); Councillors Holes, Airey, Cross, Manning and 
Rich 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

79. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

80. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

81. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2020 be 
approved as correct record. 
 

82. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair did not make an announcement on this occasion. 
 

83. EMERGENCY MOTION - A27 CROSSING NEAR DODWELL LANE 
 
Councillor Holes moved the following motion: 
 
That this Local Area Committee, noting the increased demand for 
pedestrians to cross the A27 near the junction of Dodwell Lane, and to 
assist easier and safer access to public transport and as part of a safe 
walking route to Bursledon schools, requests that Hampshire County 
Council provides a signal controlled pedestrian crossing near this junction. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the motion be approved. 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
84. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 6) that highlighted a number of projects and schemes to improve the 
prosperity, environment and wellbeing of residents in the Bursledon, 
Hamble-Le-Rice and Hound Area.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(1) £340 is allocated for a new dual waste bin in Cunningham 
Gardens green space; 

 
(2) £30,000 is allocated to the Coronation Parade Ramp Widening 

Project from Developers Contributions; 
 

(3) £2,000 to be allocated from Developers Contributions to SWR 
to fund a new Netley Station platform seat; 

 
(4) A total of £280 to fund dragons’ teeth to be installed on 

Deanfield Close and Wykeham Road; 
 

(5) Approve the Corporate policy of no increase in parking 
charges at Hamble Square Car Park and to note free parking at 
weekends on Hamble Square for an initial period of 3 months 
to support local businesses from December 2020; 

 
(6) Councillors to acknowledge the allocation of the developer 

contribution of £70,479.09 for the provision of a play area on 
land the East of Dodwell Lane and North of Pylands Lane; and 
 

(7) The Committee approve the BHH History and Heritage 
Wayfinding Trail Pre- Initiation Matrix (see appendix I) and 
appoint Cllr David Airey, Cllr Tonia Craig and Cllr Malcolm 
Cross to the project steering group and invite Parish Council 
Chairpersons and Clerks to attend. 

 
85. NAMING OF STREET, ROYAL BRITISH LEGION SITE, NETLEY 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Senior Engineering Specialist 
regarding the street naming of the Royal British Legion site in Netley, 
subject to any objections from Royal Mail. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Poppy Place be approved as the name for the new street off 
Station Road, Netley. 
 

6



3 
 

[NOTE: Councillor Maureen Queen spoke on behalf of Hound Parish 
Council stating that a name to commemorate the Royal British 
Legion was appropriate.] 
 

86. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
A short pre-recorded presentation was givenon guidelines that had to be 
taken into account when determining planning applications; in particular 
the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This was set 
against the broader policy framework. 
 

87. PLANNING APPLICATION - CHALCOT, YORK ROAD, NETLEY ABBEY, 
SO31 5DD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for the erection of 
1no. one-bedroom dwelling following demolition of existing one-bedroom 
dwelling and garage. (Ref: F/20/88114). 
 
The Committee noted the recommendation to Permit. A motion to refuse 
the granting of the permission was proposed and seconded by Councillors. 
 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Committee REFUSED the scheme for the following reasons:  
 

1. The proposed development by virtue of its size and scale 
would have an unacceptable impact upon the visual amenity 
and character of this part of the Netley Abbey Conservation 
Area. As such the proposed development is considered to be 
contrary to saved Policies 59.BE and 169.LB of the adopted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011), Policies 
DM1 and DM12 of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2016 - 2036 and the Council’s ‘Quality Places’ and ‘Netley 
Abbey Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Proposals’ SPDs. 

 
2. The proposal due to its design and footprint would result in 

insufficient amenity space enjoyed by the occupiers of the 
property. As such the proposal is contrary to Saved Policy 
59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review [2001-2011] 
and Quality Places Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
[NOTES: (A) Three written statements were received and Councillor 
Maureen Queen spoke live on behalf of the Parish Council in 
objection to the application citing concerns of the eroding cliff, 
increased level of traffic, parking, site access and street scene. (B) 
The agent spoke in support of the application stating that the impact 

7



4 
 

of the height of the building on the street scene had been minimised 
and adding conditions could deal with the concerns of cliff erosion.]  
 

88. PLANNING APPLICATION - THE ANCHORAGE, LANDS END ROAD, 
BURSLEDON, SO31 8DN 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda Item 10) concerning an application for the retention 
of detached raised summerhouse (retrospective application). (Ref: 
H/20/88728) 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
To REFUSE, as set out in the committee report. 
 
[Note: The applicant spoke in support of the application stating that 
the design was of a high standard and maintained the character of 
the Special Policy Area and Old Bursledon Conservation Area.] 
 

89. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal Services reported:- 
 

(a) that the following appeals had been lodged: 
 

15 Bridge Close, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8AN (H/20/87956) 
 
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for: Raise 
ridge height and addition of dormer window to northwest side 
elevation. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 
 
Lorna Doone, West End Road, Bursledon. SO31 8BP (F/19/86835) 
 
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
retention of outbuilding and change of use to an office (B1 Use Class). 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
(b) that the following appeals had been dismissed: 

 
Mole Cottage, High Street, Bursledon, Southampton SO31 8DL 
(C/20/87290) 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for a 
replacement dwelling. 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 

8



5 
 

RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
M6619 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



(BHH, Bursledon, Hamble-Le-Rice & Hound Local Area 
Committee, 21

st
 January 2021) 

 
Application Number: H/20/88877 
Case Officer: Rachael Morris 
Received Date: 29th September 2020 
Site Address: The Cottage, Station Road, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 

8AA 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Farrier 
Proposal: Removal of existing outbuilding construction of a single 

storey front extension and detached car port with cycle 
store 
 

Recommendation:  Subject to the consideration of any comments received 
from the Old Bursledon Action Group (delegated to the 
Head of Housing and Development in consultation with 
Members): PERMIT subject to conditions 

 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the following plans numbered: L01, B01, 8501/01, 01 Rev B, 02, 
03, 04, 05 Rev A, 06 Rev A, 07, 08 Rev A. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years 
from the date of this decision. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 

3. The materials to be used must match as closely as possible, in type, 
colour and texture those listed in Section 6 of the application form. 
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship of the new 
development to the existing. 
 

4. The development must accord with the arboricultural report reference 
C.MW.20.0905.AIA Rev B dated 14/12/2020. No excavation, demolition 
or development related works shall commence until the tree protection 
fencing and ground protection has been installed as per the tree 

11

Agenda Item 7



protection plan contained within the report. Once installed, no access 
by vehicles or placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, soil or other 
materials shall take place within the protected area. Tree protection 
measures shall be retained in their approved form for the duration of the 
work. 
 
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an 
important part of the amenity of the locality. 

 
5. Note to applicant: Tree and hedge work should be done outside of bird 

nesting season or checks must be done within 48 hours of the start of 
works to ensure that no active bird nests are disturbed.  If there are any 
active bird nests are found work must stop and the nests must be 
protected from disturbance with a suitable buffer (usually 5m) until after 
the chicks have fledged. 
 

6. Note to applicant: If any bats are found during construction all work 
must stop and Natural England must be called. Information on how to 
contact Natural England can be found at 
https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/bat-found-during-building-works. 
 

7. Note to applicant: Biodiversity enhancement can be achieved by 
increasing the variety of flowering plants in the garden including night 
scented plants to attract pollinators. 
 

8. Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough 
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development 
proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and 
to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 
 
Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee by members Cllr Tonia 

Craig, Cllr Steve Holes and Cllr David Airey. 
 
 
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 
 
2. The Cottage is an unlisted building that makes a positive contribution to the 

character of the zone and is in fact the principal element in the view along 
most of Station Road on the approach to both Station Hill and the station 
itself. It is therefore a very important focal point for this area. 
 

3. The primary element of the current building is a generally symmetrical 
frontage consisting of a central front door under a projecting tiled porch 
with a cottage style two-light window either side matched at first floor level 
and a central chimney. To the right-hand end is a forward projecting 
extension with similar windows, one on either floor at the front and the 

12

https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/bat-found-during-building-works


whole being under a hipped roof.  
 

4. The space in front of the building also provides an important contribution to 
the Conservation Area.  Due to the orientation and topography of the 
property which runs parallel to the road, the property’s front garden and 
front elevation holds a prominent view.  Additionally, the property’s back 
garden represents a paramount ‘green break’ in development which also 
exhibits a strong character.   

 
 
Description of Application 
 
5. This application is for the removal of an existing outbuilding to construct a 

single storey front extension and a detached car port with cycle store. 
 

6. The proposed extension is a single storey projection from the front 
elevation which then turns back and progresses back into the site.  The 
design is made up of a walkway and gable-end feature to the main body of 
the extension, which is made of mainly glass, timber and aluminium.  
 

7. The application also proposes a car port to the north of the site which will 
be a hipped roof and also provide a section for cycle storage.  

 
Relevant Planning History 
 

 C/13/72860 - One & two storey front & side addition to provide 
habitable accommodation & double garage, following demolition of 
existing outbuilding – Refuse – Oct 2013 
 

 U/14/74862 - Application for a lawful development certificate for a 
proposed development: Single storey front extension – Certificate 
issued – Sept 2014 (remains extant)  

 
Representations Received 
 
8. None 
 
Consultation Responses 
 
Bursledon Parish Council: 
 
9. Object on the following grounds: 

 Detrimental impact on the street scene 

 The proposed development is visible from highway railway station exit 

and neighbouring properties. 

 The mass and design are harmful to the setting within the Special 

Policy Area / Old Bursledon Conservation Area. 

 Design not in keeping with Special Policy Area and Old Bursledon 

Conservation Area 

13



 

Updated – Parish: 

 

10. To be received as an update due to the amended plans 

 
Built Heritage Consultant (9/11/20): 
 
11. Unfortunately there is a valid Lawful Development Certificate in place that 

would absolutely ruin all this impression and have a seriously detrimental 
effect on this part of the Old Bursledon Conservation Area, which would be 
totally contrary to all that is trying to be achieved in maintaining and 
enhancing these heritage assets for the enjoyment the current population 
and future generations. 
 

12. The planning policies for the Bursledon Conservation Area limit the size of 
extensions to existing properties.  While this extension exceeds those 
parameters, somehow there is a Lawful Development Certificate 
(U/14/74862) for an extension that also exceeds the limit but this one, at 
about the same size, is of far superior design so should be supported in 
order to avoid the LDC being implemented and ruining this corner of Old 
Bursledon.   
 

13. Unlike the LDC proposal this scheme is both sensitive to and respectful of 
the host building. The prime element of kitchen/living space is of timber 
frame with a plain tiled pitched roof to match the existing, apart from being 
gabled rather than hipped but with transparent ends that give a lighter feel. 
This is linked to the host with a low-key link, again transparent to the front, 
which attaches to the existing extension and tucks into that corner leaving 
the existing cottage window intact maintaining the symmetrical feel of the 
major part of the ‘front’ elevation. 
 

14. An excellent street scene elevation has been produced by the architects 
showing the green gap to be maintained between the house with extension 
and proposed new garage. This structure benefits from having the cycle 
store to the front taking the pitch down to below hedge level therefore 
reducing its impact. A pity the tree is going but it is for the best of reasons, 
nothing lasts forever – perhaps a replacement further up the garden?  
 

15. This scheme is infinitely preferable to the LDC with a low-key elevation to 
the north and transparent elevations to east and west. The roof lights 
should be set to have the glass pane level with the finished tiling. No 
objection. 

 
Updated - Built Heritage Consultant (15/12/20) 
 
16. With this application one must consider it in the most unusual context of 

there being an LDC (U/14/74862) in place for the most appalling extension 
which is unfortunately still extant.  This is of the most basic conception and 
consequently would result in a gross carbuncle on the front of this building 

14



which was noted as making a positive contribution to the character of the 
area in the Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Proposals adopted in February 2012.   
 

17. The management proposals note the garden forms a green break in the 
development pattern, making an important contribution visually to the 
character of the zone with the proposal that ‘the LPA will seek to retain the 
predominately open character of the garden.’ 
 

18. The still valid LDC scheme projects some 11.8m in front of the existing 
building and presents an area of approximately 22m. sq. above the fence 
and hedge in a single block fixed to the front of the cottage.  The current 
scheme, in either iteration, presents about 7.5m. sq. for the glazed gable, 
appearing virtually separated from the house and approximately 6m. sq. for 
the car port on the other side of the property, giving a total of about 13.5m. 
sq., some 8.5m.sq. less or a nearly 40% reduction of intrusion into the 
space.   
 

19. There remains a gap of about 12.5m. between the walls of each structure 
which are both low profile with the roofs sloping away from this, also 
helping to give the impression of a larger gap.  Obviously the slightly lower 
pitches do help to minimise the intrusion into the gap which for comparison 
is about equal to the width of No.1 Holmlea, a little more than No. 2 
Holmlea and a little less than Calmore. 
 

20. To my mind the objectives of the Conservation Area Management 
Proposals will be preserved and the LDC scheme prevented with a well-
considered design of merit.  No objection. 

 
Tree Officer (26/11/20): 

 
21. With regards to the proposed development area, there is only a single tree 

that is of note: a yew - T1. However, the report also mentions an alder – T2 
– to the north of the proposed development area. Both trees provide 
significant visual amenity to the local area and, the yew in particular are 
important features in the conservation area.  
 

22. T2 is proposed for removal due to poor physiological condition. The effect 
on amenity would be significant. However, it is not possible to verify the 
“smaller leaves than expected” due to the time of year. Indeed, from the 
photographs presented in the report we would caution the author’s 
conclusion that the tree presents an “unacceptable risk” without evidence 
to accompany that claim. We do not feel that removal has been suitably 
justified.  
 

23. The proposed pruning to T1 is not unreasonable in terms of the crown 
spread, but we would prefer to maintain the height, unless evidence can be 
provided that a height reduction is arboriculturally justified. I am concerned 
that the author has suggested that the submission of the report should be 
used as a Section 211 notice – the earliest decision date on the planning 

15



application is after the six week date of a S.211. I am not in a position to 
confirm whether a notification such as this is legal, as presumably it has 
not been validated under that purpose.  
 

24. The principal concern with the proposed development would be the 
potential effect on the rooting area of T1. The submitted report suggests 
that no direct impact will occur due to the retaining wall. While this may be 
correct, no evidence, only conjecture, has been offered to support this 
claim. Given the significance of this tree, we would have expected more 
detail to be provided which could demonstrate that no significant harm will 
occur. In addition, the report – specifically the method statement – makes 
no account for the possibility that roots may be found during construction, 
the protection of areas that could contain roots or for any supervision 
during this time, especially when working close to the retaining wall.  
 

25. It should be noted that we believe that the proposal is potentially feasible, 
but we do not feel that the provided documentation suitably demonstrates 
that T1 can be retained successfully. Therefore, we raise an objection to 
the proposal. 

 
Updated - Trees (15/12/20): 
 
26. We are happy that the report has removed proposals to fell T2 and reduce 

T1 in height.  Also with the removal of mentions to a Section 211 notice 
and the tree protection plan including the retention of T2, we are happy 
with this and will attach a condition. 

 
Ecology: 
 
27. After receiving close-up photos of the outbuilding due for removal and 

close-by trees, it is clear that the bat roost potential of the outbuilding and 
the trees T1 and T2 are negligible. Therefore I don’t think a Preliminary 
Ecology Assessment or a bat survey are needed for this development.  
 

28. Tree and hedge work should be done outside of bird nesting season or 
checks must be done within 48 hours of the start of works to ensure that no 
active bird nests are disturbed.  If there are any active bird nests are found 
work must stop and the nests must be protected from disturbance with a 
suitable buffer (usually 5m) until after the chicks have fledged.  
 

29. If any bats are found during construction all  work must stop and Natural 
England must be called. Information on how to contact Natural England 
can be found at https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/bat-found-during-building-
works. 

 
Bursledon Rights of Way and Amenities Preservation Group: 
 
30. OBJECT  

 

16

https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/bat-found-during-building-works
https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/bat-found-during-building-works


31. The Cottage features in the Old Bursledon Management and Appraisal 
Proposals (Supplementary Planning Document) as an unlisted building in 
Zone 3 that makes a positive contribution to the Old Bursledon and Special 
Policy Area.  
 

32. The garden is described in detail with a proposal in paragraphs 4.95 and 
4.96 as follows:  

“4.95 This space in the middle of the zone forms a green break in the 
development pattern. It makes an important contribution visually to the 
character zone and should be retained as an open landscape. Saved 
Policies 18 CO 169LBi and 171LB support the retention of landscape 
character features.  
4 .96 Proposal - The local planning authority will discourage development 
on this garden.”  
 

33. Boundary structures of Station Hill are also described in 4.97 with a 
proposal in paragraph 4.98, as follows:  

“4.97 Station Hill has been closed to public vehicular traffic and has since 
suffered from a proliferation of inappropriate boundary treatments such as 
fences that visually harm the character… Whilst permitted development 
rights allow the erection of fences or walls to a certain height without 
requiring planning permission residents should be encouraged to choose 
suitable materials and styles to reflect the historic nature of this zone.  
4.98 Proposal - The local planning authority will advise residents on the 
choice of suitable materials and styles when opportunities arise.”  
 

34. This application includes a laurel hedge as its boundary with Station Road 
with a substantial wooden gate, which currently hide the garden from public 
view. The proposed extension and car port (garage?) plus drive will 
impinge on the open landscape and prevent the garden’s contribution to 
the landscape character of the area. The proposal will not enhance the Old 
Bursledon Conservation area.  
 

35. This scheme may be preferable to the one permitted by the lawful 
development certificate, but its proposed extension and car port would be 
less obtrusive if moved to another part of the garden where they would be 
less obvious. A low, brick wall and see-through gate would allow the 
garden to continue to feature as open landscape and the brick wall would 
reflect the historic nature of the zone and serve as an introduction to the 
walled, former Greyladyes Estate properties further up Station Hill and to 
Greyladyes Park to the rear. 

 
Old Bursledon Action Group: 
 
36. To be reported 
 
Environment Agency: 
 
37. To be reported 
 

17



Hampshire Countryside Services: 
 
38. Bursledon Footpath 507 to the south and Footpath 1 to the west are 

unaffected by the proposals. We therefore have no objection. 
 
 
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Designated Countryside 

 Within HRA Screening Area 

 Within Designated Conservation Area 

 Within Special Policy Area 

 EA Main River 8m Buffers 

 EA Risk of Flooding from Surface Water 30-year extent 

 EA Risk of Flooding from Surface Water 100-year extent 

 NE Impact Risk Zones 

 Solent Mitigation & Disturbance Zone 
 

Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 
 

 1.CO (Countryside Protection); 

 9.CO (Extensions to existing dwellings in the countryside) 

 25.NC (Promotion of biodiversity); 

 59.BE (Design criteria); 

 104.T (Off-highway parking); 

 169.LB (Criteria for development in a Conservation Area) 

 179.LB (Old Bursledon) 
 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 
 
39. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 

examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While 
this has not been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can 
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the 
determination of this application. 

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 
40. The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 

31st October 2018 and the examination hearings concluded in January 
2020. The Council received the Inspector’s post-Hearing advice on 1 April 
2020.  The Council is progressing with modifications to the Local Plan to 
enable its adoption, anticipated in mid-2021.  Given the status of the 
Emerging Plan, it is considered that overall moderate weight can be 
attributed to it. The most relevant policies are: 

 

18



Strategic policies: 

 S1 (Sustainable Development); 
 

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound: 

 BU9 (Residential extensions and replacement dwellings, Old Bursledon 
Special Policy Area) 

 
Development Management policies: 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria); 

 DM12 (Heritage Assets); 

 DM28 (Residential extensions and replacement dwellings in the 
countryside) 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

 Quality Places (November 2011); 

 Residential Parking Standards (January 2009); 

 Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Proposals (February 2012) 

 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
41. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or 

the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy 
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of 
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  

 
42. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic 

(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing 
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services); 
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built 
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken 
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities 
for achieving sustainable development in different areas. 

 

43. In the instance that a proposal would not preserve or enhance the 
conservation area then it must be perceived to have a public benefit.  
Referring to paragraph 195 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 
proposals that stand to potentially harm a designated heritage asset, in 
this case the Old Bursledon Conservation Area, should be refused 
unless a public benefit can be identified which would outweigh any harm 
the proposal presents.  

 

19



National Planning Practice Guidance  
 
44. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the 

provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the 
consideration and determination of planning applications.  

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 
 
45. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local 
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and 
Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case).  The NPPF and the 
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of significant 
weight. 
 

46. The site also lies within a Conservation Area and Section 71(1) of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states: 

 

47. “In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in the 
Conservation Area of any powers (under the Planning Acts), special 
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of that area”. 

 
Principle: 
 
Sustainable Development: 
 
48. Section 2 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that the purpose of the 

planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 
development, which can be summarised as meeting the needs of the 
present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their 
own needs. 

 

49. Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has 
three overarching objectives – economic, social and environmental (which 
are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways) 
that should be delivered through the preparation and implementation of 
plans and the application of the policies in the Framework. 

 

50. Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding 
development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take 
local circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and 
opportunities of each area. 

20



 

51. National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that all 
planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on the 
Environment. Details elsewhere in this report set out the Climate Change 
and Environmental implications of this application and their proposed 
mitigations. 

 

Principle and Policy: 
 

52. The site is located within the countryside, where the type of development is 
restricted by Policy 1.CO. However, the extension will not facilitate the 
subdivision of the site into more than one dwelling or result in the dwelling 
becoming disproportionate in size to neighbouring properties or 
disproportionate in relation to its plot.  Policy 9.CO makes provision for 
residential extensions within the countryside, where they do not materially 
worsen the impact of the dwelling on its immediate surroundings or the 
countryside in general. 

 

53. Policy 59.BE requires development to take full and proper account of the 
context of the site including the character and appearance of the locality 
and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting.  
It also requires a high standard of landscape design and avoid unduly 
impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss 
of outlook, noise and fumes. 

 

54. Policy 169.LB states that alterations and extensions to existing 
buildings, within the Conservation Area, will be permitted, provided 
particular criteria is met: the proposal preserves or enhances the 
character or appearance of the Conservation Area or its setting; any 
new building or extension does not detract from the character of the 
area; the mass, materials and form of the building and associated 
landscape features are in scale and harmony with the existing and 
adjoining buildings; and the materials to be used are appropriate to and 
in sympathy with the existing buildings and the particular character of 
the area. 

 

55. Policy 179.LB states that in order to protect the special loose-knit 
character of Old Bursledon and to ensure the retention of existing open 
areas, further development will be refused within the special policy area 
with the exception of appropriate extensions, provided that they respect 
and enhance the character of the Special Policy Area. 

 

56. Most of the criteria set out within the adopted Local Plan Policies have 
been carried through to the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
(2016-2036). However, Policy BU9 has revised the criteria set out in 

21



Policy 179.LB. Under Policy BU9 Residential extensions within Old 
Bursledon are required to not increase the total volume of the 
dwellinghouse by more than 25% (as included in the Emerging 2011-
2026 Local Plan); have regard to the impact between the development 
and the openness of the area; ensure the proposal is subservient to the 
original dwellinghouse; does not urbanise the area; and does not detract 
from the character of the area as viewed from the River Hamble.  
However, during the appeal hearings the Inspector questioned the need 
for this policy (including the 25% maximum volume increase) and written 
feedback is awaited. Therefore, at this current time, it is considered that 
Policy 179. LB of the adopted local plan holds more weight than Policy 
BU9 in the decision-making process.  However, in an effort to protect 
the character of the area, the council’s long term desire to restrict the 
extent of development in Old Bursledon is acknowledged.  

 

57. Referring to the Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Management Proposals SPD it is worth noting that this proposal is 
located within Zone 3 of the management proposals.  

 
Design and layout: 

 

58. The design of the proposed single-storey extension is suited to the host 
dwelling.  The extension will be set back off the immediate front 
elevation and will recede back into the site. 

 

59. The proposal will involve removing the existing boundary fence that 
separates the front and rear garden to let the extension go through.  
Therefore, although the extension initially extends from the front, the 
extension will mainly sit in the back garden.  This is due to the plot size 
and layout, which is a generous size but with the main property 
squeezed into the very bottom south corner of the plot there is little 
opportunity to extend in another fashion.  

   

60. The Cottage is identified in the Old Bursledon Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Management Proposals SPD to be an un-listed building 
that makes a positive contribution.  This is recognised in the design that 
proposes to limit the protrusion from the front elevation and will reduce 
the potential to diminish this positive contribution the dwelling currently 
makes.   

   

61. The design of the gable pitch creates a similar appearance to the side 
elevation of the main dwelling that is seen from Station Road, which has 
a hipped profile.  The gable, as seen from the east and west side, has 
been amended to be reduced in its overall height and now measures 
approx. 4.5m from apex to floor level, which is approx. 2m lower than 

22



the main dwelling from ridge to floor, excluding the chimney.  The 
superseded scheme measured approx. 5.2m from the apex to the floor 
level.   

 

62. From the road, this extension does not dominate the appearance of the 
house and will not create a ridge higher than the existing dwellinghouse 
which will maintain the extension as a subservient addition.  The 
extension will retreat into the site which will reduce its immediate impact 
and soften its appearance, especially as the chosen materials will 
weather.   

 

63. The design of the proposal reflects a traditional structure with a 
contemporary twist that would create additional interest to the traditional 
character of the house.  Moreover, the painted timber, oak framed, and 
aluminium framed glazing reflects the character of the area and the 
dwelling as existing which has similar features.  The avoidance of UPVC 
is supported as it would be inappropriate to a house within this setting.  
Timber is also to be used on the proposed French doors. 

  

64. The clay tiled roof will match existing.  While the proposed brick plinth 
and oak weatherboard on the proposal will differ from that of the existing 
cream brick on the main dwelling, this is considered to highlight the 
distinction between old and new with the two blended together creating 
a fusion where the proposal would be seen to compliment the original 
dwelling and also be seen as a clear addition.     

 

65. The proposal also includes a carport which is located to the north of the 
site.  The design of the carport is a modest addition to the site and will 
not detract from the character of the area.  Although vegetation is not a 
reason the car port would be permissible, the car port will also be tucked 
round behind a proposed mature tree; therefore, being partially 
screened from Station Road.  The car port roof is proposed as hipped 
and is only single storey so will not adversely impact the adjacent 
neighbour at 2 Holmlea.  Additionally, the proposed slate roofing and 
black stained weatherboarding will create a dark feature as to not draw 
attention to itself and reduce its impact on its setting.  The proposed 
height from its apex to the floor is approx. 3.9m in height by 6.9m in 
depth and by 5.2m in width.      

 

 

Impacts on the Conservation Area and Special Policy Area: 

 

66. Within the Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Proposals SPD under paragraph 4.93 and 4.94, the document states the 
importance of the garden of The Cottage.  It is stated to provide a ‘green 

23



break’ in the development pattern and makes an important visual 
contribution to the character zone and should be retained as open 
space. 

 

67. This proposal due to the recessed nature of the extension and 
separation distance between the proposed extension and proposed car 
port, would not create a development that would detract from the open 
space the management proposal is seeking to retain.  Moreover, the 
application site currently has entrance gates that act as a barrier to the 
‘green break’ of which will be replaced and have a character not too 
dissimilar from its existing appearance.   

 

68. The proposals do not accord with saved policies 169.LB and 179.LB, in 
that it would create a mass that would not be in harmony to the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area, and due to its 
siting would have a harmful impact on the Special Policy Area.  

 

69. The Cottage is not close to any listed buildings and will not affect their 
setting.   Upcot, the closest listed building, is also separated by a no 
through road section, limiting its potential to be associated.   

 

70. Referring to policy BU9 and the Old Bursledon Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Management Proposals SPD, the proposed extension 
would increase floor space by 63%.  While it is noted this is above the 
recommended 25%, it should be considered that the previous Lawful 
Development Certificate (LDC) permission granted in 2014 would see a 
floor increase of 65%.  Therefore, these two extensions are almost 
identical in overall mass, but this proposal exhibits a superior 
architectural quality when compared to the approved LDC scheme.  It 
should be noted that this level of development, although sympathetically 
designed, would normally be refused due to its proposed massing 
surpassing that that would be appropriate for the conservation area.    

 
 

Residential Amenity: 

 

71. Saved policy 59.BEvii requires proposed development to avoid unduly 
impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of 
outlook, noise and fumes.  In addition the ‘Quality Places’ SPD seeks to 
ensure that there will be no unacceptable impact on the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, light or outlook.  

 

72. The residential amenity of neighboring properties will not be detrimental 
impacted by the proposals.  The development does not overlook any 

24



neighbouring properties and therefore accords with saved policy 59.BE 
vii.  

 

73. The development accords with guidance set out in the Quality Places 
SPD in that there will be no unacceptable impact on the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, light or outlook.  The 
proposals will also not create any overshadowing to neighbouring 
properties.  

 

74. The neighbour at no.2 Holmea would not be adversely affected by the 
proposed car port that would be located close to their boundary.  The 
car port is not located close to the property and would not be used for a 
purpose outside the realms of a residential use so is not anticipated to 
create unacceptable noise levels.   

 

Access and Parking: 

 

75. Access will remain as existing with a proposed new car port located on 
site.  The proposed driveway will be similar in is size to existing, with a 
new proposed entrance gate.  With the proposed car port tucked to the 
side, this would provide car and cycle storage while also maintaining the 
important open green space to the rear of the plot.   

 

76. The car port is measured to accommodate 2 car parking spaces along 
with cycle storage.  When comparing the size of the car port with the 
Council’s Residential Parking Standards (SPD) for a garage, this car 
port is not deep enough to accommodate a car.  However, this space is 
large enough to provide at least one car parking space, fit for standards, 
with available parking outside of the car port on the drive. 

 

77. The property will become a 4+ bedroom property with the addition of a 
ground floor bedroom within the proposal, requiring 3 off-highway 
parking spaces in order to accord with the parking standards.  The site 
has capacity to accommodate this.    

 

Flood Risk: 

 

78. The proposal does not sit within a designated flood zone so no 
mitigation or set floor levels are required. 
 

79. The area of development is not covered by substantial levels of surface 
water flooding so will not require surface drainage measures to be 
implemented for this scheme.   

25



 

Ecology: 

 

80. The proposals were assessed for bat roost potential and have been 
deemed to have a negligible likelihood of being present within the 
existing outbuilding scheduled for removal and the two nearby trees, 
one of which is scheduled to be reduced and one retained.  

 

81. Conditions have been requested by ecology which requires tree and 
hedge work to be done outside of bird nesting season with checks being 
required within 48 hours of works starting.  Additionally, a standard note 
on the discovery of bats will be imposed. 

 

Trees: 

 

82.  The tree report has been amended to retain the Alder T2 and has provided 
details regarding the Yew T1 for an event in which roots may be found 
during construction.  

 

83. The tree officer is satisfied with the submitted arboriculture report and has 
attached a condition for in the event permission is granted, including the 
necessary accordance with the submitted report and tree protection plan.  

 

84. Overall, there is little anticipated affect on trees and mitigation has been put 
into place to ensure trees are not harmed during the construction process.  

 

Other material considerations 
 
Previously approved U/14/74862: 
 
85. The single storey front extension that is the subject of this application has a 

fallback position available to the property whereby a Lawful Development 
Certificate (LDC) was issued in 2014.  The LDC scheme measures 11.8m 
extending out from the front elevation, 5.2m wide and 3.95m high.  At the 
time of submission, the LDC established that a front extension of the size 
proposed was Permitted Development (PD).     
 

86. The Town and Country Planning Act 1995 is Section 192 (4) states that: 
“The lawfulness of any use or operations for which a certificate is in force 
under this section shall be conclusively presumed unless there is a 
material change, before the use is instituted or the operations are begun, in 
any of the matters relevant to determining such lawfulness” 
 

26



87. Although the change of the GDPO regulations in 2015 removed the ability 
to undertake unlimited front extensions, which would be a material change, 
the drainage from that scheme was implemented which means the 2014 
LDC would still stand as extant and so could still be completed at any time. 
 

88. As the approved extension is almost identical in floorspace and occupies a 
much more prominent position to the front of the house within the front 
garden and will alter the current appearance of this notable property, 
arguably creating a feature that will mostly destroy the character of the 
house as existing, this LDC would create a feature more harmful than the 
scheme proposed under this application. 

 
Equalities Implications: 
 
89. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 

duty. Section149 states:- 
- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 

regard to the need to: 
a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and 

any other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who 

share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it; 

c. foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it. 

 
90. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 

equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It 
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications. 

 

Conclusion 
 
91. In conclusion, the proposed extension and carport would be harmful to the 

Conservation Area, despite its amended design to reduce the overall 
height of the gable and carport, because of its overall proposed size and its 
siting in a prominent location.  However, when considered against the 
alternative approved scheme which would otherwise be likely to be 
implemented, on balance it is considered acceptable and in the public 
interest to permit this scheme.  This is due to the poor design quality of the 
approved LDC and so this application would be the better of the two; 
therefore, the best long-term option and is therefore recommended 
permission.  The recommendation to Permit subject to conditions is also 
subject to the consideration of any comments received from the Old 
Bursledon Action Group (delegated to the Head of Housing and 
Development in consultation with Members).    

  

27



 

28



(BHH, Bursledon, Hamble-Le-Rice & Hound Local Area 
Committee, 21

st
 January 2021) 

 
Application Number: H/20/88626 
Case Officer: Rachael Morris 
Received Date: 28th August 2020 
Site Address: St Georges, Kew Lane, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 

8DG 
Applicant: Mr Craig Powell 
Proposal: Erection of Wooden Garden Studio to replace Wooden 

Shed and Greenhouse 
 

Recommendation:  Subject to the consideration of any comments received 
from the Old Bursledon Action Group (delegated to the 
Head of Housing and Development in consultation with 
Members): PERMIT subject to conditions 

 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the following plans numbered: LOC 01, BLOC 01, 3353-075-02 
REVISION A, 03 and 04. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years 
from the date of this decision. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 

3. The materials to be used must be as close as possible, in type and 
texture to those listed in Section 5 of the application form with the 
colour being painted in Dulux Green Glade or in a colour that matches 
close to this (https://www.dulux.co.uk/en/colour-details/green-glade) 
and shall thereafter be maintained in this colour.  
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual relationship of the new 
development to the existing. 
 

4. The ground floor window on the east elevation to the rear [as marked 
on the approved plan 04] shall either be obscure glazed to Pilkingtons 
level 3 or equivalent.  Once installed the window shall be permanently 
maintained in that condition. 

29

Agenda Item 8

https://www.dulux.co.uk/en/colour-details/green-glade


 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential 
properties. 
 

5. The development hereby permitted shall only be used in conjunction 
with the existing dwelling and shall not, at any time, be used for 
business, commercial or industrial purposes or as an independent or 
ancillary residential unit. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining residential properties. 
 

6. Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough 
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development 
proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and 
to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner. 

 
 
Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee by Cllr Tonia Craig, Cllr 

Steve Holes and Cllr David Airey. 
 
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 
 
2. The site to the south east of Kew Lane is secluded with only two other 

residential properties; this is the northern property, with one to the south 
and another to the east.  These dwellings are detached with their 
boundaries linking to each other, made up of traditional style residential 
treatments including close-boarded fencing and wire fencing.  The area is 
generally well wooded. 
 

3. This site lies within the Old Bursledon Conservation Area with the nearest 
listed building being that of The Old Rectory up by the junction of Kew 
Lane with School Road. 

 
Description of Application 
 
4. The application seeks the erection of a Wooden Garden Studio to replace 

Wooden Shed and Greenhouse.  This will be sited to the back of the rear 
garden.  
  

5. The overall height is approx. 3.5m from the floor level to the top of the roof 
apex, approx. 3.9m across its entire depth and approx. 8m across its width. 
The proposal is also approx. 35m away from the main dwelling and approx. 
2m from the boundary of Advent Cottage. 

6. The studio is proposed with wooden walls which will be painted pale green, 
with pale green wooden windows, part glazed pale green entrance doors 
and a black shingle roof tiles.   

30



 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
7. None 
 
Representations Received 
 
8. 1 letter of objection raising the following points: 

 The removal of a hedge has exposed a more open view to St 
Georges from the east neighbouring property. 

 Scale of proposal and adverse impact on outlook 

 Close siting to boundary (2m) 

 Window on the elevation facing the east neighbouring property  

 Potential for future business/residential use 
 
Consultation Responses 
 
Parish Council: 
 
9. OBJECT on the following grounds: 
 

 The development is in the Special Policy Area / Old Bursledon 

Conservation Area this proposal appears to have as large a footprint as 

the main house and is overbearing on the plot and neighbouring property. 

 There are concerns over the potential for commercial use and/or the sub-

division of the plot. 

 Detrimental impact within the Conservation Area 
 
Built Heritage Consultant: 
 
10. The proposed siting of this structure is at the top of the garden which is roughly 

half way between the host building and the main property behind next to a studio 
or similar at the bottom of their garden which overlaps that of St. Georges. 
 

11. By virtue of it’s position and the amount of forestation around, it is unlikely to be 
seen by the general public, however the proposal to paint it white will highlight it’s 
presence if anyone has sufficient elevation to see it through the trees in autumn 
or winter. A darker colour would reduce this likelihood to preserve the rural idyll 
and not add to the whiteness already presented by the house itself. 
 

12. The presence of a structure of this nature in this position is no problem in itself, 
from a conservation perspective, however the proposed colour, although under a 
dark roof, might well highlight its presence unnecessarily. 
 

13. In a darker colour, I would have no problem. 
 
Tree Officer: 
 

31



No objection 
 
Old Bursledon Action Group: 
 
To be reported 
 
SGN: 
 
No Comment 
 
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 
 

 Outside Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Designated Conservation Area 

 Within a Special Policy Area 

 Within an area of SGN Medium Pressure 

 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 
 

 1.CO (Countryside Protection); 

 9.CO (Extensions to existing dwellings in the countryside) 

 59.BE (Design criteria); 

 169.LB (Criteria for development in a Conservation Area) 

 179.LB (Old Bursledon) 
 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 
 
14. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 

examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While 
this has not been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can 
therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the 
determination of this application. 

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 
15. The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 

31st October 2018 and the examination hearings concluded in January 
2020. The Council received the Inspector’s post-Hearing advice on 1 April 
2020.  The Council is progressing with modifications to the Local Plan to 
enable its adoption, anticipated in mid-2021.  Given the status of the 
Emerging Plan, it is considered that overall moderate weight can be 
attributed to it. The most relevant policies are: 

 
Strategic policies: 

 S1 (Sustainable Development); 
 

32



Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound: 

 BU9 (Residential extensions and replacement dwellings, Old Bursledon 
Special Policy Area) 

 
Development Management policies: 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria); 

 DM12 (Heritage Assets); 

 DM28 (Residential extensions and replacement dwellings in the 
countryside) 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

 Quality Places (November 2011); 

 Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal and Management 
Proposals (February 2012) 

 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
16. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or 

the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy 
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by 
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of 
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  

 
17. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic 

(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing 
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services); 
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built 
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken 
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities 
for achieving sustainable development in different areas. 

 
18. In the instance that a proposal would not preserve or enhance the 

conservation area then it must be perceived to have a public benefit.  
Referring to paragraph 195 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 
proposals that stand to potentially harm a designated heritage asset, in 
this case the Old Bursledon Conservation Area, should be refused 
unless a public benefit can be identified which would outweigh any harm 
the proposal presents.  

 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance  
 

33



19. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the 
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the 
consideration and determination of planning applications.  

 
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 

 
20. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local 
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and 
Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case).  The NPPF and the 
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of significant 
weight. 

 
21. The site also lies within a Conservation Area and Section 71(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states: 

 

22. “In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in the 
Conservation Area of any powers (under the Planning Acts), special 
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of that area”. 

 
 
Principle and Policy: 
 
23. The site is located within the countryside, where the type of development is 

restricted by Policy 1.CO. However, the studio will not facilitate the 
subdivision of the site into more than one dwelling or result in the dwelling 
becoming disproportionate in size to neighbouring properties or 
disproportionate in relation to its plot. Policy 9.CO makes provision for 
residential extensions within the countryside, where they do not materially 
worsen the impact of the dwelling on its immediate surroundings or the 
countryside in general.  However, worthy of note, Policy 9.CO does not 
directly apply to this studio as it is not an extension, but the policy does 
have relevant objectives that can be referred to during this decision 
process.     

 

24. Policy 59.BE requires development to take full and proper account of the 
context of the site including the character and appearance of the locality 
and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting.  
It also requires a high standard of landscape design and avoid unduly 
impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss 
of outlook, noise and fumes. 

 

34



25. Policy 169.LB states that alterations and extensions to existing 
buildings, within the Conservation Area, will be permitted, provided 
particular criteria is met: the proposal preserves or enhances the 
character or appearance of the Conservation Area or its setting; any 
new building or extension does not detract from the character of the 
area; the mass, materials and form of the building and associated 
landscape features are in scale and harmony with the existing and 
adjoining buildings; and the materials to be used are appropriate to and 
in sympathy with the existing buildings and the particular character of 
the area. 

 

26. Policy 179.LB states that in order to protect the special loose-knit 
character of Old Bursledon and to ensure the retention of existing open 
areas, further development will be refused within the special policy area 
with the exception of appropriate extensions, provided that they respect 
and enhance the character of the Special Policy Area. 

 

27. Referring to the Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Management Proposals SPD it is worth noting that this proposal is 
located within Zone 6 of the management proposals and there are no 
key management approaches of relevance to this dwelling or proposal.  

 

28. The area is subject to an Article 4 direction on properties, meaning that 
Permitted Development Rights have been removed for development 
within Class E of the Order (The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015).  Therefore, an 
outbuilding, enclosure, or swimming pool incidental to the enjoyment of 
the dwellinghouse that would be considered permitted development 
could not be built within this area.  This specific development is within 
2m from the boundary and so would exceed the permitted height of 
2.5m for allowed development within 2m of the boundary; therefore this 
development would not have been permitted development if there was 
no Article 4 direction in place.   

 

Character and appearance: 
 

29. The proposal’s overall size is considered acceptable and would be akin to 
those found in larger residential garden plots, while still leaving generous 
amenity space and being in scale to its plot.  The studio would be 
incidental to the main dwellinghouse within the private amenity space of 
the garden.  The studio is not a size that would be a departure from a 
residential use and can sit comfortably within the generous garden plot of 
the house.  A further use that would not be considered incidental, such as 
a residential unit or a business would need further planning permission and 
conditions are recommended to restrict such uses occurring.   
 

35



30. The proposal is listed on the application form to be built of wood which will 
then be painted a pale green.  It is noted that the main dwelling and both 
immediate neighbours are rendered in white.  Additionally, the outbuilding 
at Advent Cottage is also white in colour.  Therefore, the proposed green 
colour would help to soften its appearance in the Conservation Area which 
presently is heavily populated with white buildings.    
 

31. The studio is proposed to have a darker coloured roof made of felt and roof 
shingles in a black shade.  This proposal would reduce the outbuilding’s 
impact on the conservation area by reducing its overall presence.  Also, 
this contrast in colours is also seen on the surrounding dwellings and on a 
neighbouring outbuilding.   
 

32. The proposed window frames are listed to be made of wood and not 
UPVC.  This is further respecting its location in the conservation area in 
which the materials chosen are in harmony to its surrounding area and the 
associated buildings.  
 

33. The studio would not impact on the wider Old Bursledon Conservation 
Area as it will be screened from public view by the verdant, sylvan 
character and extensive hedging that borders Kew Lane.  Moreover, the 
proposal will maintain the open distinctiveness of this area of Old 
Bursledon Special Policy Area.    
 

Residential Amenity: 

 

34. Saved policy 59.BEvii requires proposed development to avoid unduly 
impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of 
outlook, noise and fumes.  In addition the ‘Quality Places’ SPD seeks to 
ensure that there will be no unacceptable impact on the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, light or outlook.  

35. The proposed rear elevational window is proposed as obscure glazed so 
the proposal will not directly overlook into the neighbour’s private amenity 
space.  This will be supported by a condition to ensure this is retained.    

 
Equalities Implications: 
 
36. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 

duty. Section149 states:- 
a. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 

regard to the need to: 
i. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 

other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

36



ii. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it; 

iii. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
37. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 

equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It 
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications. 

 

Conclusion 
 
38. In conclusion, the proposed garden studio is suited to the host dwelling and 

its associated plot.  The studio is modest and will be in-keeping to its 
surroundings.  Additionally, the studio will preserve the conservation area 
and respect the special policy area. The recommendation is to Permit 
subject to conditions, and subject to the consideration of any comments 
received from the Old Bursledon Action Group (delegated to the Head of 
Housing and Development in consultation with Members).  

 
 

37



 

38



BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY 21 JANUARY 2021 

FINANCE REPORT 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that £18,100 to be allocated for revenue costs of Bursledon 
Windmill from existing annual revenue budget for 2020/21; 
 

Summary 
 
This report details a project which will improve the prosperity, environment and wellbeing 
of residents in the Bursledon, Hamble-Le-Rice and Hound Area.  The Local Area 
Committee’s support is sought to enable its implementation. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 
S.106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The works outlined below contribute to the following strategic priorities: 

 Local First: local decision-making (where possible) on matters which affect 
people’s lives; using contributions from local developments for local projects 

 Excellent Environment for all: creating a sense of place through improved 
pathways, additional bins and air quality 

 Enabling health and wellbeing and tackling deprivation; improving community 
infrastructure and places where different people can meet and receive support 
and services 

 Reinvigorating town/ local centres: Creating vibrant, active places where 
people want to spend time, generating the right environment for economic, 
social and cultural prosperity. 

 

Bursledon Windmill 

39

Agenda Item 9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

2. The BHH LAC have jointly funded revenue costs for the Bursledon Windmill 
with Hampshire County Council since 2015 from the committee’s annual 
revenue budget.  The historical contribution to Hampshire County Council for 
revenue costs of the Bursledon Windmill can be found below: 

YEAR £ 

2015/16 26,342 

2016/17 23,707 

2017/18 21,337 

2018/19 18,336 

2019/20 18,136 

 

3. A joint Management committee consisting of Eastleigh Borough Council and 
Hampshire County Council officers and members meet biannually for 
management updates of the windmill.  Councillor Alan Broadhurst chaired the 
last meeting held on 11 December 2020. 

 

Financial Implications 

 

4. There are no financial implications apart from the commitments set out in the 
project. All expenditure can be contained within existing allocated developer’s 
contributions, capital accounts and revenue reserves. 

Risk Assessment 

5. The risk of not making the contribution could result in the closure of Bursledon 
Windmill to the public and the Windmill falling into disrepair. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

6. The Equality Act is relevant to the decisions in this report as the decisions 
relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, and 
fostering good relations between people of different backgrounds.  

7. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because 
while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a 
full EIA.  

 

8. Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

None of the proposals within this report will lead to increases in Greenhouse 
Gas/CO2 or damage the ecology or the environment.  

40



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Conclusion 

9. These recommendations are now submitted for Councillors’ final approval 
from the Local Area Committee’s revenue budget, revenue reserves and 
available developer contributions for the above projects. As further schemes 
are worked up, they will be brought before the Area Committee over the 
course of the coming months.  Councillors are invited to indicate any schemes 
which they feel should be publicised in Borough News and local 
communications with residents and partners. 

 

ROSS MCCLEAN 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 5th January 2021  
Contact Officer: Ross McClean  
Tel No: 02380 683367 
e-mail: ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 

41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Planning Application - The Cottage, Station Road, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8AA
	8 Planning Application - St Georges, Kew Lane, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8DG
	9 Financial Management Report

